
 

  wincoil.gov | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse  

400 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room, 8th Floor 

 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 
6:00 p.m. 

 
1. Call to Order  ............................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance………………………….………………………………..Keith McDonald 
 
3. Agenda Announcements .............................................................. Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
4. Roll Call ................................................................................................ Clerk Lori Gummow 
 
5. Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings and Public Participation 

A. Awards – None 
B. Presentation – Debbie Jarvis, Update on the Juvenile Detention Center  
C. Public Hearings – None 
D. Public Participation – Jacqueline Hawkins, Crimes Against Children – Report of Illinois 

Department of Juvenile Justice, Pro 
 

6. Approval of Minutes .................................................................... Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
A. Approval of December 14, 2023 minutes  
B. Layover of January 11, 2024 minutes  

 
7. Consent Agenda………………………………………………….………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

A. Raffle Report   
B. Auditor’s Report 

 
8. Appointments (Per County Board rules, Board Chairman appointments require a 30-day 

layover unless there is a suspension of the rule) 
A. Winnebago County Sheriff’s Merit Commission, Annual Compensation: $55 per meeting, 

not to exceed $600 per year 
1. Michael Purin (Reappointment), Caledonia, Illinois, 6-year term, December 2020 to 

December 2026 



wincoil.gov | Page 2  

2. Michael Tulley (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, 6-year term, December 2020 to 
December 2026 

3. Ryan Fritz (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, 6-year term, December 2020 to 
December 2026 

B. Winnebago County Liquor Commission, Annual Compensation: none 
1. Kevin McCarthy (Reappointment), Rockford, Illinois, 1-year term, January 2024 to 

January 2025 
2. Michael Thompson (Reappointment), Loves Park, Illinois, 1-year term, January 2024 to 

January 2025 
C. Cherry Valley Fire Protection District, Annual Compensation: $4,500 

1. Steve Schwartz (New appointment), Cherry Valley, Illinois, to fulfill the remainder of a 
3-year reappointment, May 2021 – May 2024 

 
9. Reports of Standing Committees ………………………………………………….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 

 
A. Finance Committee ....................................................... John Butitta, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Execution of the Charter Communications Cable Television 

Franchise Agreement Amendment 
3. Ordinance to Abate the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 

the year 2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 
4. Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax 

Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 
5. Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternative 

Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 
6. Ordinance to Abate the tax hereto levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 to pay the 

principal of and interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternative Revenue 
Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois to be Laid Over 

7. Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 

8. Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for the 
Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 

9. Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be 
Laid Over 

10. Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue 
Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024 to be 
Laid Over 

11. Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety 
Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy for the Year 
2023 Payable 2024 to be Laid Over 

12. Ordinance to Abate Special Tax Roll for 2023 Levy Year for Properties within the Special 
Service Area for the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project to be Laid Over 
 

B. Zoning Committee ........................................................ Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
Planning and/or Zoning Requests: 



wincoil.gov | Page 3  

1. Committee Report 
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... John Sweeney, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 

 
D. Operations and Administrative Committee ............ Keith McDonald, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Awarding Jury Box Construction Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds 

Cost: $47,308 
3. Resolution Awarding Purchase of Detective Squad for Sheriffs Office Using CIP 2024 

Funds 
Cost: $53,845.53 

 
E. Public Works Committee ............................................. Dave Tassoni, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. (24-001) Resolution Authorizing a Joint Funding Agreement with The State of Illinois 

for Latham Road Resurfacing from Owen Center Road to IL-2 and for Appropriating RBI 
Funds 
(Section 22-00709-00-RS) 
Cost: $750,000 (County $630,000 / TARP $119,700)        C.B District 1, 5 

3. (24-002) Ordinance Amending Chapter 82 of the Winnebago County Code Designating 
Latham Road (C.H. 17) from Meridian Road (CH 24) to IL-2 and Owen Center Road (C.H. 
13) from Riverside Boulevard (C.H. 55) to Latham Road (C.H. 17) as Class II Truck Routes 
Cost: N/A       CB District 1, 5 

4. (24-003) Resolution Authorizing a Structural Engineering Agreement with Willett 
Hofmann & Associates, Inc. for Bridge Load Rating Updates as Part of the Centralized 
Agency Permitting System (CAPS) 
Cost: $20,000      CB District: County Wide 
 

F. Public Safety and Judiciary Committee……………………Brad Lindmark, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
 

10. Unfinished Business …………………………….……………………………………..Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 
Appointments read in on December 14, 2023 
A. North Park Fire Protection District, Annual Compensation: not to exceed $1,500 

1. Timothy Freiberg (New Appointment), Rockford, Illinois, 3-year term, November 2023 
to November 2026 

B. Winnebago County Sheriff’s Merit Commission, Annual Compensation: $55 per meeting, 
not to exceed $600 per year 
1. Danielle Schlichting (New Appointment), Caledonia, Illinois, 6-year term, December 

2023 to December 2029 
2. Kevin Gulley (New Appointment), Leaf River, Illinois, 6-year term, December 2023 to 

December 2029 
 

11. New Business………………………………………………………………………………Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 



wincoil.gov | Page 4  

(Per County Board rules, passage will require a suspension of Board rules). 
 

12. Announcements & Communications ..................................................... Clerk Lori Gummow 
A. Correspondence (see packet)   

 
13.  Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………..….Chairman Joseph Chiarelli 
 

Next Meeting:  Thursday, February 8, 2024 



Awards,  
Presentations,  
Public Hearings  

and Public Participation 



Winnebago County 
Court Services

Adult Probation
Pretrial Services

Juvenile Detention
Juvenile Probation

Resource Intervention Center (RIC)



Juvenile Detention Center

• Built in 1992 as a 32 bed facility
• Expanded in 1995 to 48 bed 

facility

• Provides secure detention for 
youth charged with serious 
felony offenses

• Average ages of youth are 14-17



Statutory Authority to Operate

• County Shelter Care and 
Detention Act

• Operates under the authority of 
the Chief Judge

• Juvenile Court Act of 1987



Operational Standards
for Detention

Administrative Office of Illinois Courts 

• AOIC
• Bi-Annual Operational Review

Illinois Department of Juvenile Justice 

• IDJJ
• Annual Audit



How does a youth get admitted into detention?

1. Arrest and juvenile detention tool screening

2. A Juvenile Warrant has been issued

3. The youth is remanded from court   



Juvenile Detention Hearing 

• Must be held within 40 hours (excluding weekends and holidays) from 
the time a youth is detained.

(705 ILCS 405/5-501)

• The Juvenile Probation Department completes a Probation Summary 
which provides background information on the youth for the court’s 
consideration.

Criminal History, Demographics, Education, Health and Behavioral Health concerns.

• If the minor’s family is unable to hire an attorney, a Public Defender is 
appointed.



Juvenile Detention Hearing
Once a delinquency petition has been filed by the State’s Attorney’s Office, there 
must be a judicial finding for the following:

Probable Cause that an offense has been committed

• Protection of the minor or another person
• Protection of the property of another person
• The minor is likely to flee

“Immediate and Urgent Necessity” to detain 

Outcomes:  Minor is released with or without conditions 
or returned to JDC until the next hearing



Juvenile Detention Statistics

2020
• Intakes:   324 juveniles
• Average Length of Stay: 27 days
• Average Population: 23.6 youth

2021
• Intakes:  250 juveniles
• Average Length of Stay: 24 days
• Average Population:  18.1 youth 

2022
• Intakes:  377 juveniles
• Average Length of Stay: 30 days
• Average Population:  33.5 youth

2023
• Intakes:   402 juveniles
• Average Length of Stay: 29 days
• Average Population:  36.9 youth



Juvenile Detention Staffing

• 2019
• Full-time Staff 29
• Part-time Staff  14

• 2024
• Full-time Staff 32 (with 3 vacancies) 
• Part-time Staff   5



Employment Factors impacting staffing

• Bachelor’s degree, Illinois resident, meet AOIC hiring standards

• Starting wage: $46,195

• Facility staffed 24/7   No time off for holidays or weekends

• Difficult work environment – 30 incidents in 2023 toward staff that were or 
could have been charged.

Staff must complete a minimum 40 hours of training annually.  New staff must 
complete an additional 40 hours of onboarding training.  



Schedule challenges

• Staff Ratio 8:1 (waking hours) or 16:1 (sleeping hours)
• Prison Rape Elimination Act (PREA) standards must be met

Two staff must be present to transport any juvenile
i.e. - Court, doctor appointments, hospital stays, etc.

• Various simultaneous activities occurring which all require staff 
supervision

• No contact conditions for youth (court order, rival gangs, etc.)
• Space restrictions at the facility (including on-going construction)



Programming at Juvenile 
Detention



Programming Standards
AOIC Standard 5.1

• Detention Centers’ programming shall 
be evidence-informed and utilize 
evidence based practices

• Cognitive Behavioral Programming

IDJJ Standard 2602.220
• Programs designed to address the risk 

and needs of delinquent youth shall 
be provided to youth in custody either 
by staff or community providers. 

• Programs may include drug and 
alcohol treatment, group or individual 
counseling, social and life skills 
training and family interventions



Juvenile Detention Programming 

• Freedom Behavioral Health 480 hours/month
• Rockford Reachout Jail Ministry 18 hours/month
• Youth for Christ 16 hours/month
• Rosecrance 80 hours/month
• University of Illinois Extension 2 hours/month
• Winnebago County Health Department 2 hours/month
• Rkfd Alliance Against Sexual Exploitation 12 hours/Quarterly
• Therapy Dogs 1 hour/month



Therapeutic Services through WCCMHB 
Funding            

Individual 
therapeutic 

sessions

Cognitive 
Behavioral 

Therapy Groups

Seeking Safety 
Group

(Trauma)

Develop 
therapeutic plans 

and discharge 
plans for youth

Immediate 
intervention for 
youth in crisis

Training and 
supportive 

services for staff

3 Full-time 
Therapists

7 days a week

Highlight:   Winnebago Co Detention has the highest number of therapeutic hours in the state.



Modified Behavior Management Program

• Utilize incentive based point system for youth to earn points to 
purchase rewards

• Youth are no longer given set periods of time in their rooms/cells for 
behavioral issues

• Therapists utilize trauma informed approaches to assist with 
de-escalation



Educational Services

• RPS 205
• 3 FTE Teachers, 1 Aid, 0.5 FTE Social Worker (not yet started)
• 5 hours/weekday
• Follow the ISBE school calendar

• 2 classrooms and Cafeteria 
• Classroom size depends upon population count and juvenile needs
• Utilize I-pads and Chromebook



Facility Improvements
We are making progress because of your support!!



Nuctech
Body Scanner

Purchased in 2021 though 
ARPA funding

Allows for trauma informed 
searches of juveniles entering 
facility

ONLY DETENTION FACILITY IN 
ILLINOIS WITH A BODY 
SCANNER



Other Funded Projects

• Parking Lot Resurface completed in November 2023
• Oven replaced – December 2023
• Parking Lot Lights converted to LED – January 2024
• Boiler Replacement – Scheduled for January 2024
• Fence Repair – February 2024
• Tile and Grout repair for showers – March 2024
• LED lighting – March 2024
• HVAC Replacement – Completion targeted for March 2024
• Hot water system for domestic supply – Spring 2024

Thank you!



What work do we have left 
to do?



Evaluate and Address Staffing Levels –

AOIC complete a staffing plan analysis

Bring results of analysis to the Board for 
consideration.



Current Space Limitations at JDC

• Freedom therapists are utilizing A pod for office space – reducing bed 
space by 2

• Rosecrance services, including psychiatric services, are occurring in the 
gym

• Limited in evening programming due to lack of space
• 3rd classroom is in the cafeteria
• Virtual court being held in the Quiet Room
• Storage room converted to PREA office
• Limited visiting space requiring visitors to wait or be turned away
• U of I nursing staff have outgrown their out-of-date nursing area
• Holding cells no longer meet standards due to having no windows



Building Expansion Goals for JDC Campus

Complete a Space 
Needs Study

Expand the JDC 
facility

Relocate Assessment 
Operation to JDC

(improve staff ratio 
at JDC)

Re-open the Day 
Reporting Center



To meet the current needs in Winnebago 
County

What is needed

Continue to Improve the 
Juvenile Detention Center to 
encompass better services 

for the youth

Re-engage the Day Reporting 
Center as alternative to 

Detention

Relocate and Expand 
Operation of the Juvenile 

Assessment Center



Thank you for your support!
• Multiple County Board Members have toured the JDC more 

than once in 2023.
• Chairman Chiarelli personally attended tours on at least three separate times.

• Presented multiple times to the Public Safety Committee and 
Finance Committee.

• Support of the Chief Judge through weekly meetings to 
review operations.



Questions?

All Board Members are welcome to schedule a tour of the 
JDC



Thank You!  



Approval of 
Minutes 

























CONSENT 
AGENDA 









Appointments 



      404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

Executive Summary 
Date: January 25, 2024 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Winnebago County Sheriff’s Merit Commission Appointment 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The Chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following persons to 
serve as County appointees: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Michael Purin of Caledonia, Illinois, Michael Tulley of Rockford, Illinois and Ryan Fritz of 
Rockford, Illinois to serve 6-year terms from December 2020 – December 2026 on the 
Winnebago County Sheriff’s Merit Commission. 

Winnebago County Sheriff’s Merit Commission 

Location: 650 West State Street, Rockford, IL 61101 

Service 
Description: 

The Merit Commission shall promulgate rules, regulations, and procedures for the 
operation of the merit system and administer the merit system. These rules, 
regulations, and procedures shall provide for the appointment, promotion, 
disciplining, and discharging of deputies and correctional officers in the office of 
Sheriff pursuant to recognized merit principles of public employment. 

Board 
Composition: 

Five (5) commissioners, appointed to six (6) year terms by the Sheriff, with the 
approval of a majority of the members of the county board, If the Sheriff fails to 
appoint a person to fill the vacancy within 30 days, the Chairman of the County 
Board shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired portion of the term, with the 
approval of a majority of the members of the county board. No more than 3 
members may be affiliated with the same political party.  No member of the 
commission shall hold a statutory partisan political office. 

Compensation: $55 per meeting, not to exceed $600 per year 
Bond: 

Attorney: State’s Attorney’s Office 
Meetings: 

Origin of Entity: https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/005500050K3-8003.htm 
Property 

Tax/Funding: 
Consolidation/ 

Dissolution Plans: none 

https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/documents/005500050K3-8003.htm


      404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

Executive Summary 
Date: January 25, 2024 
From: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli 
Topic: Board Appointment 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 

County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The Chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 

Recommendation: County Board Chairman Joseph V. Chiarelli recommends the following person to 
serve as County appointee on the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District Board: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Steve Schwartz, Cherry Valley, Illinois, to fulfill the remainder of a 3-year reappointment, 
May 21 – May 24  

Cherry Valley Fire Protection District 

Location: 4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL  61109 

Service 
Description: 

Protect the lives and property of our community through emergency services and risk 
reduction for the Village of Cherry Valley and unincorporated areas of Winnebago and 
Boone Counties, encompasses approximately 25 square miles. https://www.cvfpd.com/ 

Board 
Composition: 

Three (3) trustees appointed to three (3) year terms by the County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Compensation: $4,500.00 annually / 375.00 per month with certification classes 

Bond: $2,000 

Attorney: Karl Ottosen 

Meetings: Second Thursday of each month 5:15 p.m. 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District At (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property 
Tax/Funding: District levies an annual property tax, charges for services and replacement tax. 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution 

Plans: 
If applicable 

https://www.cvfpd.com/
https://www.cvfpd.com/
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=872&ChapterID=15
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=872&ChapterID=15


 



 



Reports of 
Standing 

Committees 



FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



    Resolution Executive Summary 

Prepared By:  Lafakeria S. Vaughn 
Committee:  Finance Committee 
Committee Date: January 18, 2024 
Resolution Title:   Resolution Authorizing Execution of the Charter Communications 

Cable Television Franchise Agreement Amendment 
County Code:      Not Applicable 
Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    N/A     Appropriation Amount:   N/A 
If not, explain funding source:  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Budget Impact:  N/A 

Background Information: Spectrum Mid-America, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Charter 
Communications, LLC (Charter Communications) currently provides cable video programming 
services within unincorporated Winnebago County, Illinois pursuant to a cable television franchise 
granted by the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“County”) in June, 2013.  

The County executed a renewal of its cable franchise agreement with Charter Communications on 
June 28, 2023 (“Franchise”). The Franchise includes provisions that were not subject to negotiation 
and thus the Franchise requires modifications and amendment. The prior Franchise agreement 
which expired by its terms on June 30, 2023, after a mutual sixty (60) day extension, has remained 
in full force and effect until approval of this Amendment.  

Recommendation: Staff concurs  

Legal Review:  Legal review conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office 

Follow-Up: On behalf of the County, the Winnebago County Board Chairman will execute the 
Franchise amendment.   



      County Board Meeting: January 25, 2024 
 

RESOLUTION 
OF THE 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

2024 CR _______ 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

SPONSORED BY:  JOHN BUTITTA 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE CHARTER 

COMMUNICATIONS CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
AMENDMENT 

 
 WHEREAS, Spectrum Mid-America, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Charter 
Communications, LLC (“Charter Communications”) currently provides cable video 
programming services within unincorporated Winnebago County, Illinois pursuant to a 
cable television franchise granted by the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“County”) in 
June, 2013; and 
 

WHEREAS, the County executed a renewal of its cable franchise agreement with 
Charter Communications, on June 28, 2023 (“Franchise”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Franchise includes provisions that were not subject to negotiation 
and thus the Franchise requires modifications and amendment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the prior Franchise agreement which expired by its terms on June 30, 
2023, after a mutual sixty (60) day extension, has remained in full force and effect until 
approval of certain modifications and amendments (“Franchise Amendment”); and   
 

WHEREAS, the County and Charter Communications agree to the Franchise 
Amendment. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago, Illinois, that Joseph V. Chiarelli, the Winnebago County Board Chairman is 
hereby authorized and directed to execute the Charter Communications Cable Television 
Franchise Agreement Amendment by and between the County of Winnebago, Illinois and 
Spectrum Mid-America, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Charter Communications, LLC, in 
substantially the same form as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 
 



               Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

 JJOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN  JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

  JOE HOFFMAN 
 

   JOE HOFFMAN 
 

 
KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH V. CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 
 



1 
 

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 
CABLE TELEVISION FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 

  
 WHEREAS, cable providers are required to negotiate an agreement for use of public right-
of-way with the County of Winnebago, Illinois (“Grantor”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Grantor executed a renewal of its cable franchise agreement with Spectrum 
Mid-America, LLC, an indirect subsidiary of Charter Communications, LLC (“Grantee”), on June 
28, 2023 (“Franchise”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Franchise includes provisions that were not subject to negotiation and thus 
the Franchise requires modifications and amendment prior to Grantee’s acceptance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the prior Franchise agreement which expired by its terms on June 30, 2023, 
after a mutual sixty (60) day extension, has remained in full force and effect until approval of 
certain modifications and amendments (“Franchise Amendment”); and   
 

WHEREAS, Grantor and Grantee agree to the following Franchise Amendment;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS ARE MADE: 
 

  First, in Section 1 of the Franchise, the definition of “Grantee” is replaced with the 
following:  

 
 “Grantee” shall mean Spectrum Mid-America, LLC. 

 
  In addition, the following term shall be added to Section 1 of the Franchise: 
   

“Effective Date” of the Franchise and Franchise Amendment will take effect and be 
in full force from such date of acceptance by Grantee recorded on the signature page 
of this Franchise Amendment.   

  
 Second, Sections 2.2, 4.6, 4.7, 6.1 and 7.2 of the Franchise are deleted and replaced with the 
following: 
 

Section 2.2 Term of Franchise. The term of the Franchise granted hereunder shall 
terminate on June 27, 2033, unless the Franchise is renewed or is lawfully terminated 
in accordance with the terms of this Franchise Agreement and/or applicable law.  
Upon passage and approval of this Franchise Agreement, the Parties acknowledge 
that this Franchise Agreement is intended to replace all existing franchise agreements 
– including the prior Franchise with the Grantee, regardless of whether said prior 
Franchise or franchise agreements are in effect. 

 
Section 4.6 Service to School Buildings and Governmental Facilities. Grantee 
shall comply with complimentary service provisions of 220 ILCS 5/22-501(f) and 
any other applicable federal laws. 

 



2 
 

Section 4.7  Emergency Alerts. Grantee shall comply with 47 U.S.C. 544(g) and 
all regulations issued pursuant thereto with respect to an Emergency Alert System 
(“EAS”).   

 
Section 6.1  Transfer of Cable System or Franchise or Control of Grantee. The 
Franchise granted hereunder shall not be assigned, other than by operation of law or 
to an entity controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Grantee, 
without the prior consent of the Grantor, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed.  No such consent shall be required, however, for a transfer in 
trust, by mortgage, by other hypothecation, or by assignment of any rights, title, or 
interest of the Grantee in the Franchise or Cable System to secure indebtedness.  
Within thirty (30) days of receiving a request for transfer, the Grantor shall notify the 
Grantee in writing of any additional information it reasonably requires to determine 
the legal, financial and technical qualifications of the transferee.  If the Grantor has 
not taken action on the Grantee’s request for transfer within one hundred twenty (120) 
days after receiving such request, consent by the Grantor shall be deemed given. 

 
Section 7.2 Indemnification. The Grantee shall, by acceptance of the Franchise 
granted herein, defend the Grantor, its officers, elected officials, boards, 
commissions, agents, and employees for all claims for injury or damages to any 
Person or property caused by the Grantee in the construction or operation of the 
Cable System and in the event of a determination of liability shall indemnify and 
hold Grantor, its officers, elected officials, boards, commissions, agents, and 
employees harmless from any and all liabilities, claims, demands, or judgments 
growing out of any injury or damages to any Person or property arising out of the 
Grantee’s construction, repair, extension, maintenance, operation or removal of its 
wires, poles or other equipment of any kind or character used in connection with the 
operation of the Cable System, provided that the Grantor shall give the Grantee 
reasonably prompt written notice of its obligation to indemnify the Grantor at least 
ten (10) days prior to the deadline for the response or if no such deadline exists not 
later than thirty (30) days of receipt of a claim or action pursuant to this section.  In 
the event any such claim arises, the Grantor shall tender the defense thereof to the 
Grantee and the Grantee shall have the right to defend, settle or compromise any 
claims arising hereunder and the Grantor shall cooperate fully herein. If the Grantor 
determines in good faith that its interests cannot be represented by the Grantee, the 
Grantee shall be excused from any obligation to represent the Grantor.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Grantee shall not be obligated to indemnify the 
Grantor for any damages, liability or claims resulting from the willful misconduct or 
negligence of the Grantor, its officers, elected officials, boards, commissions, agents, 
and employees or for the Grantor’s use of the Cable System. Nothing herein shall be 
construed to limit the Grantee’s duty to indemnify the Grantor by reference to the 
limits of insurance coverage described in this Agreement.  

 
 Third, Sections 7.2.1 and 7.2.2 are deleted in their entirety. 
 
 Fourth, Section 8 is deleted in its entirety. 
 



3 
 

 All other sections of the Franchise are approved and accepted by the Grantor and Grantee 
and shall take effect as of the Effective Date. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED this _____ day of __________________, 2024 
      
      County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
      By: ________________________________ 
 
      Print Name: Joseph V. Chiarelli 
 
      Title: Chairman of the County Board 
                 of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
   
 
ACCEPTED this _____ day of _____________________, 2024 
 

Spectrum Mid-America, LLC 
      By: Charter Communications Inc., its Manager 

 
      By: _______________________________  
   

Print Name: Paul Abbott 
 
Title: Vice President, Local Government Affairs & 
Franchising 

      Charter Communications, Inc. 
 



































Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 
Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax 

Levy for the year 2023 Payable 2024 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 
 

 
ORDINANCE  

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 
 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2012C STATE INCOME TAX ALTERNATE BOND 
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024  

 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-54 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell 
Alternative Bonds in an amount not to exceed $1,340,000 for the purpose of capital 
improvements to certain County owned buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, on August 14, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-85 which the Board ordained to issue $1,340,000; and   
 
WHEREAS, on February 23, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2006-CO-20 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate 
Bonds in an amount not to exceed $3,500,000 to raise money for the purpose of defraying the 
cost of capital improvements to certain County buildings; and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 27, 2006 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2006-CO-58 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the Board 
ordained to issue $3,500,000 in Alternate Bonds authorized in 2006-CO-20; and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 26, 2012 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2012-CO-031, which provides for the issuance and sale of $3,285,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012C to refund all of the $710,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2003D 
and a portion of the $2,800,000 Outstanding Bonds of Series 2012C; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that the principal and interest payments on 
the aforesaid Alternate Bonds shall be made from State Income Tax Dollars (Pledged Revenues), 
which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an annual 2012C 
State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal 
and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due for 
each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and  



 

WHEREAS, the County ordained to levy a 2023 payable 2024, 2012C State Income Tax Alternate 
Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $272,950 the amount needed to make all 
principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 
2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2023 payable 
2024 tax year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of $272,950 
for the tax year 2023 payable 2024 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk.  
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2022 payable 2023. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2016E PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX  
ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024 

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed Ordinance 
No. 2003 CO-44 which gave the County of Winnebago the authority to sell Alternate Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $115,000,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the expenses 
of acquisition of land, and construction of a new Criminal Justice Center; and  

WHEREAS, on September 4, 2003 the County Board of the County of Winnebago passed 
Ordinance No. 2003-CO-l 06 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which the 
Board ordained to issue $25,000,000 in Alternate Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the County Board determined that it was necessary and in the best interest of the 
County to obtain net present value interest savings and to restructure the indebtedness 
represented by the Series 2003E Bonds and to refund the portion of the Bonds of the 
outstanding Series 2003E Bonds maturing in each of the years 2020 to 2022 inclusive; and  

WHEREAS, the County Board adopted Ordinance No. 2006-CO-143 on November 21, 2006 
authorizing the issuance, and providing for the sale of, the County's General Obligation 
Refinancing Alternate Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2006E in 
the amount of $18,765,000; and  

WHEREAS, the County Board approved Ordinance No. 2016-CO-l 19 on November 10, 2016 
authorizing and providing for the issuance and sale of $18,515,000 General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016E of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of currently 
refunding and restructuring a portion of the outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds 2016E; and  

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax in an amount sufficient to 
make the principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such 
payments become due, for each year in which any of the Bonds are outstanding; and  



 

WHEREAS, in said Section 20, the County ordained to levy a 2023 payable 2024, 2016E Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $656,450 the 
amount needed to make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate 
Bonds through December 30, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance authorizes the County Board to abate 
each annual 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Tax Levy provided there are sufficient 
funds on deposit in the Pledge Revenues Subaccount of the Principal and Interest Account of 
the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Fund to fully pay the Alternate Bond Debt 
Service otherwise payable from each such Tax Levy; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is presently at least $656,450 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount, 
which is sufficient to fully make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned 
outstanding Alternate Bonds through December 30, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance, it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2023 
payable 2024 tax year.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board for the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
that the 2016E Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy in the amount of 
$656,450 for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the 2017C Tort Property Tax and Quarter Cent Sales Tax 
Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2017C Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Bond 
Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2017C TORT PROPERTY TAX AND 
QUARTER CENT SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE BOND PROPERTY TAX LEVY

FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024 

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2009 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
passed Ordinance No. 2009-CO-87 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordnance") 
which gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of paying expenses 
associated with certain tort obligations in excess of insurance coverage; and 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate Bond 
Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $13,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2017, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance No. 2017-CO-046 which authorizes and provides for the issuance and sale of up to 
$10,250,000 General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate 
Revenue Sources) Series 2017C of the County of Winnebago, Illinois for the purpose of advance 
refunding a portion of the Outstanding Aggregate Principal Amount of General Obligation 
Alternate Bonds (Tort Fund Property Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2010A; and  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments  
on the aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from the Tort Fund Property Tax; and 

WHEREAS, Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also levy an 
annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest payments on the 
outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in which any of the 
aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, in Section 20 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance the County ordained to levy a 2023 
payable 2024 Property Tax sufficient to produce the sum of $975,750 (the amount needed to 
make all principal and interest payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds through 
December 30, 2024); and 



 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that the County Treasurer 
shall deposit Pledged Revenues into the Pledged Revenues subaccount of the Bond Fund in an 
amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest and principal coming due on the 
Series 2017C Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit of such monies for such year, 
the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $975,750 in the aforesaid Pledged Revenues Subaccount to fully 
make all principal and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond 
Fund through December 30, 2024; and 
  
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year; 
and 
  
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois  
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $975,750.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2017C Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year in the 
amount of $975,750 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By: Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee: Finance Committee 

Committee Date: January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the tax hereto levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 to 
pay the principal of and interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds 
(Alternative Revenue Source) Series 2018 of Winnebago County, Illinois 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted? Yes Appropriation Amount: Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source: Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code: Not Applicable Budget Impact: None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year.   

Recommendation:  Approval of the ordinance abating the 2018 General Obligation Bonds Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable 

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE TAX HERETO LEVIED FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE
2024 TO PAY THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON TAXABLE GENERAL  

OBLIGATION BONDS (ALTERNATIVE REVENUE SOURCE)  
SERIES 2018 OF WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS  

WHEREAS, the County Board of Winnebago County, Illinois, by an ordinance adopted on the 
25th day of October 2018, (as amended and supplemented, the "Bond Ordinance"), did provide 
the (i) the issue of Taxable General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2018 
(the "Bonds"), (ii) the pledge of taxes levied upon all taxable property in the County for IMRF 
purposes (the "Pledged Revenues") to the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds 
and (iii) the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such principal of and interest ( "Pledged 
Taxes") if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for IMRF purposes for levy year 2023 payable 2024 (the 
"IMRF Levy") and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County Clerk"); and 

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the IMRF 
Levy for levy year 2023 payable 2024 does not exceed the County's "limiting rate" for levy year 
2023 payable 2024 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the IMRF Levy for levy year 2023 payable 2024 is not less than the amount of 
principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 
2023 payable 2024; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2023 payable 2024 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: Section J. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 
2024 in the Bond Ordinance are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $2,212,891. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 
 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2023 Payable 2024  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020A Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax 
Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020A ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois adopted 
Ordinance No. 2020-CO-007 (the Authorizing Ordinance) authorizing the issuance of General 
Obligation Bonds (Matching Tax and Motor Fuel Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2020A as 
provided in the Act, in an amount not to exceed $4,000,000; and  

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago adopted Ordinance 
No. 2020-CO-039 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which authorized and 
provided for the issuance of not to exceed $4,000,000; and  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance gave the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds 
for the purpose of constructing, maintaining and improving County highways, roads and 
bridges; and  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from Matching Tax monies and Motor Fuel 
taxes which have been pledged towards the payment of the Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance also provides that the County shall levy and Alternate 
Bond Property Tax each year until the Bonds are fully paid, in an amount sufficient to fully make 
principal and interest payments on the Alternate Bonds as such payments come are; and,  
WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,590,000; and  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Direction for Abatement of Taxes to abate from 
the taxes levied in the Bond Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County 
resulting from the sale of the Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as 
hereinabove referred to, the amount of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so 
levied which is to be extended for collection; and  



 

WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020A Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $399,500 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $401,000.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020A Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year in the 
amount of $401,000 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this Tax Abatement Ordinance in the office of the Winnebago 
County Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate the 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy 
for the Year 2023 Payable 2024  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2020B Alternate Revenue Bond Property Tax 
Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE 2020B ALTERNATIVE REVENUE BOND
PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2010 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois passed 
Ordinance No. 2010-CO-59 (hereinafter referred to as "Alternate Bond Ordinance") which gave 
the County the authority to sell Alternate Bonds for the purpose of buying real property and 
paying the expenses associated with certain renovation/remodeling of the building; and 

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2010 the County of Winnebago, pursuant to the Alternate  
Bond Ordinance, sold Alternate Bonds having an aggregate face value of $4,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the principal and interest payments on the 
aforementioned Alternate Bonds shall be made from lease revenues from the Health 
Department and the Quarter Cent Sales Tax; and  

WHEREAS, on May 14, 2020 the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois approved 
Ordinance 2020-CO-040 which authorizes the issuance of not to exceed $2,600,000 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2020B of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding Alternate Bonds of said 
County entitled Series 2010C Bonds; and  

WHEREAS, Section 11 of the 2020B Alternate Bond Ordinance provides the County shall also 
levy an annual Property Tax in an amount sufficient to make the principal and interest 
payments on the outstanding Alternate Bonds as such payments become due, for each year in 
which any of the aforementioned Bonds are outstanding; and  

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2020 the County of Winnebago sold Alternate Bonds having a face value 
of $2,020,000, and  

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago issued a Certificate of Reduction of Taxes heretofore 
levied for the payment of Bonds on June 3, 2020 to abate the taxes levied in the Bond 
Ordinance that amount representing the reduction to the County resulting from the sale of the 
Bonds in the amount and bearing interest at the rates as herein above referred to, the amount 
of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be extended for 



 

collection; and, of such abatement and the remainder of such taxes so levied which is to be 
extended for collection; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 13 of the Alternate Bond Ordinance provides, that when funds are available 
and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount necessary to provide for the payment of interest 
and principal coming due on the Series 2020B Bonds in the following year and upon the deposit 
of said monies for said year, the County may abate the Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for 
that year; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $256,500 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through 
December 30, 2024; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the Alternate Bond Ordinance it is no longer necessary for 
the County to levy a 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the people of the County of Winnebago, Illinois that the 
2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy be abated in the total amount of $256,500.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
that the 2020B Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for the 2023 payable 2024 tax year in the 
amount of $256,500 is hereby abated in its entirety.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized and 
directed to file a certified copy of this tax abatement Ordinance in the office of the  
Winnebago County Clerk.  
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate   
Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 
Payable 2024 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021A General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
(Alternative Revenue Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021A BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024

WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F (the “Prior Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing water system and 
associated capital improvements within the I-39/Baxter Road Service Area (the “Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on March 25, 2021; and  

WHEREAS, $3,485,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021A, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021A and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A Bonds for levy 
year 2023 payable 2024 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A 
Bond Levy for levy year 2023 payable 2024 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 
2024; and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2023 payable 2024 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; and 



 

WHEREAS, there is at least $399,200 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2024.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2023 payable 2024 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021A Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $399,200. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to abate the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate   
Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 
Payable 2024  

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies filed with the County Clerk. The 
abatement ordinances abate the tax levies filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. 
The abatements must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar amount 
changes every year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the ordinance abating the 2021B General Obligation Refunding Bonds 
(Alternative Revenue Source) Tax Levy for the Year 2023 payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 
 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 
 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS 
(ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2021B BOND  

PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024 
 
WHEREAS, the County had issued General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012G (the “Prior Bonds”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were issued to pay the costs of constructing improvements along 
Baxter Road and acquisition of a waterworks system from the Village of Cherry Valley (the 
“water system”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on March 25, 2021; and   
 
WHEREAS, $1,365,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2021B, of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, for the purpose of refunding certain 
outstanding alternate bonds of said County, the pledge of certain revenues to the payment of 
principal and interest on said bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has levied taxes for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source), Series 2021B and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the 
"County Clerk"); and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B Bonds for levy 
year 2023 payable 2024 calculated by the County Clerk in accordance with the provisions of the 
Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and  
 
WHEREAS, the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021B 
Bond Levy for levy year 2023 payable 2024 is not less than the amount of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 
2024; and  
 



 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2023 payable 2024 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated; and 
  
WHEREAS, there is at least $158,050 in the aforesaid Bond Fund to fully make all principal and 
interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding Alternate Bond Fund through December 
30, 2024.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2023 payable 2024 for the General Obligation Refunding Bonds (alternate revenue source), 
series 2021B Bond are hereby abated in their entirety in the amount of $158,050. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGREE DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN  JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY JEAN CROSBY 

JOE HOFFMAN JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD KEITH MCDONALD 

JOHN F. SWEENEY JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



Ordinance Executive Summary 

Prepared By:     Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:     Finance Committee 

Committee Date:     January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title:  Ordinance to Abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds 
 (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds Property 

  Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024 

County Code:   Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date:   January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?  Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information:  The County has issued a number of alternate bonds which have tax levies 
     filed with the County Clerk. The abatement ordinances abate the tax levies  
     filed for the alternate bonds for tax year 2023 payable 2024. The abatements  
     must pass on or before tax extensions are done by the County Clerk. The dollar 
   amount changes every year. 

Recommendation:  Approval of an ordinance to abate the General Obligation Alternate Refunding 
 Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2022 Bonds 
 Property Tax Levy for the Year 2023 Payable 2024. 

Contract/ Agreement:  Not Applicable  

Legal Review:    Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 

ORDINANCE  
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE THE GENERAL OBLIGATION ALTERNATE REFUNDING
BONDS (PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATE REVENUE SOURCE), SERIES 2022

BONDS PROPERTY TAX LEVY FOR THE YEAR 2023 PAYABLE 2024 

WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois (County) had issued and had outstanding General 
Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source), 
Series 2013A (the "2013A Bonds"); and, these Prior Bonds were refinanced and retired on 
August 11, 2022 reference Ordinance No. 2022-CO-057 and $12,500,000 General Obligation 
Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 
Bonds (the "2022 Bonds") were issued; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue source that is pledged to the payment of the principal of and interest 
on the 2022 Bonds are revenues received by the County from the special county retailers' 
occupation tax and service occupation tax for public safety purposes (the "Pledged Revenues"); 
and 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois has levied taxes for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds and filed the same with the County Clerk of the County (the "County 
Clerk"); and  

WHEREAS, the County has received notice from the County Clerk that the tax rate for the 
General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue 
Source) Series 2022 Bonds for levy year 2023 payable 2024 calculated by the County Clerk in 
accordance with the provisions of the Property Tax Extension Limitation Law, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate 
Revenue Source) Series 2022 Levy for levy year 2023 payable 2024 is not less than the amount 
of principal of and interest on the Bonds otherwise payable from Pledged Taxes levied for the 
year 2023 payable 2024; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. Whenever the pledged 
revenues or other lawfully funds are available and on deposit in the Bond Fund in an amount 
necessary to pay any principal of or interest coming due on the Series 2022 Bonds in the 



 

following year and upon the deposit of said monies for said year, the County may abate the 
Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for that year, with proper notification of such abatement filed 
with the County Clerk; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is at least $3,397,250 in the aforesaid Bond Account to fully make all principal 
and interest payments on the aforementioned outstanding General Obligation Alternate 
Refunding Bonds (Public Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds through 
December 30, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2023 payable 2024 to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds be abated. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, 
as follows: In accordance with Section 11. Abatement of Pledged Tax. The Pledged Taxes levied 
for the year 2023 payable 2024 for the General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (Public 
Safety Sales Tax Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds are hereby abated in their 
entirety in the amount of $3,397,250. 
  
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, upon the adoption of this Ordinance, a certified copy hereof shall 
be filed with the County Clerk, and it shall be the duty of the County Clerk to abate the Pledged 
Taxes levied for the year 2023 payable 2024 in accordance with the provisions hereof. 
 
 
 

 
  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN   JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD 
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY 

 

JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _______day of __________________________ 2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 

 



Ordinance Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Steve Schultz - Chief Financial Officer 

Committee:   Finance Committee 

Committee Date:   January 18, 2024 

Resolution Title: Ordinance to Abate Special Tax Roll for 2023 Levy Year for Properties within  
the Special Service Area for the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project 

County Code: Not Applicable 

Board Meeting Date: January 25, 2024 

Budget Information: 

Was item budgeted?    Yes  Appropriation Amount:  Not Applicable 

If not, explain funding source:   Not Applicable 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  Not Applicable Budget Impact:   None 

Background Information: 

The 139/Baxter Road Water District included a Special Service Area as part of the project. The County 
Board approved a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property within the SSA for the 
administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal and interest on the County's 
General Obligation Bonds. The Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2023 totaled $399,200. There are 
sufficient funds in the Special Tax Allocation Fund from the URL tax increment to make the payments on 
the bonds for June 30, 2024 and December 30, 2024. Based on sufficient funds being on hand the County 
Board can abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2023 payable 2024. The dollar amount changes each 
year. 

Recommendation: Approval of the Ordinance Abating the Special Tax Roll for 2023 Levy Year Payable 
2024. 

Contract/ Agreement: Not Applicable  

Legal Review: Yes, conducted by the State’s Attorney’s Office. 



County Board:  01-25-2024 
 

 
ORDINANCE  

OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Sponsored by:  John Butitta, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 

2024 CO 
 

ORDINANCE TO ABATE SPECIAL TAX ROLL FOR 2023 LEVY  
YEAR FOR PROPERTIES WITHIN THE SPECIAL SERVICE AREA FOR  

THE 1-39/BAXTER ROAD COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PROJECT  
 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by   
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-056, approved establishing a Special Service Area ("SSA") for 
the I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 25, 2012, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2012-CO-072, approved an amendment to said establishing Ordinance, 
which enacted a Special Tax Roll assessing a special tax against each property lying within 
the SSA for the administration and maintenance of the SSA and for the payment of principal 
and interest on the County's General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 
2012F, issued pursuant to the establishing Ordinance for the purpose of financing a part of 
the cost of construction and formation of said County Water District Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 25, 2021, the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, by 
Ordinance Number 2021-CO-033, providing for (1) the issue of approximately $3,725,000 
General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2021A, for the purpose 
of refunding the County’s Series 2012F Bonds, (2) the pledge of certain revenues to the payment 
of principal and interest on the bonds and the levy of a direct annual tax sufficient to pay such 
principal and interest if the pledged revenues are insufficient to make such payment and (3) the 
sale of the bonds to the purchaser thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement ("Agreement") 
between the County of Winnebago, Village of Cherry Valley and the Village of New Milford, 
dated June 6, 2012, the parties determined that the area in and around the Baxter Road 
interchange on 1-39 is appropriate for the formation of an Industrial Park Conservation Area 
to spur private investments and development defined in the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law 
("URL"); and  

 
 



 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Agreement, the Special Tax Allocation Fund ("STAF" as defined 
in the URL), created with the tax increment financing will be placed under the control of 
Winnebago County to be administered for the length of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, funds deposited in the STAF generated from the URL District shall be used to pay 
for the payments on the SSA Bonds as first priority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Special Tax Roll for the SSA for levy year 2023 totaled $399,200; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is sufficient funds from the URL increment in the STAF fund as of December 
22, 2023, to make the payments on the bonds for June 30, 2024 and December 30, 2024.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the County Board hereby abate the Special Tax Roll for levy year 2023 payable 
2024 in the following amounts: 
 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith 
immediately upon its adoption.  
 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Clerk of the County Board shall deliver certified copies of 
this Ordinance to the Winnebago County Clerk, the Chief Financial Officer and the Winnebago 
County Director of Finance. 
  

 
 
 

  

Parcel Number Amount
16-28-300-021 10,900.91      
16-28-300-027 53,349.67      
16-28-300-028 9,457.31        
16-28-300-029 8,858.75        
16-28-400-019 27,041.01      
16-28-400-022 11,534.68      
16-28-400-023 56,687.54      
16-28-400-024 29,942.29      
16-33-100-009 81,630.06      
16-33-200-009 109,797.78    

Total 399,200.00$  



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 

JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 
 

                                                       JOHN BUTITTA, CHAIRMAN 

JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN                                           JAIME SALGADO, VICE CHAIRMAN 

  JEAN CROSBY 
 

                                                                                                      JEAN CROSBY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

                                                                         KEITH MCDONALD  
 

 
JOHN F. SWEENEY  JOHN F. SWEENEY 

  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 

                                                                    MICHAEL THOMPSON 
   

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for 17th Judicial Circuit Court 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 18, 2024 
Board Date:  January 25, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Jury Box Construction Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds 

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $60,000 
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $60,000  
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $12,692 
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46320-C2323    Descriptor: CIP PSST 2023-Building Improvement 
Budget Impact? $ 47,308 

Background Information: Courtroom C, located at the Criminal Justice Center, is currently using office 
chairs in an open space in front of the judge’s bench for a jury box. The current jury box does not meet 
the Illinois Court minimum requirements for jury seating. The minimum standard requires the jury to be 
behind a 26-inch wall with side entrances and handrails, in two or more rows (rear rows elevated), 
permit wheelchair access and allow room for a wheelchair in the jury box, located so jurors can see the 
front plane of any witness’ face, be a minimum of six feet from any attorney or litigant station, and 
sufficient distance from the spectator area to avoid improper influences. 

Bid #23B-2310 Jury Box Construction was distributed to 9 potential bidders and local suppliers, 
including Local 792, publicly advertised in RRStar, and advertised on the County website. The 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit was attended by six (6) persons, representing six (6) 
vendors, resulting in six (6) formal Bids (see Resolution Exhibit A). The lowest Bidder for the 
construction project is Sjostrom and Sons, Inc. at $24,426. Quotes were obtained for fixed 
seating, with the lowest quote from Lan Office Furnishings, at $18,082.80 (see Resolution 
Exhibit B). 

Recommended By:  Tom Jakeway, Trial Court Administrator 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare and submit a Purchase Orders to 
Sjostrom and Sons, Inc. in the amount of $24,426 and Lan Office Furnishing in the amount of 
$18,082. 



County Board Meeting: January 25, 2024 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 

2024 CR 

RESOLUTION AWARDING JURY BOX CONSTRUCTION USING CIP 2023 PSST FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and,

WHEREAS, Winnebago County Courthouse has requested a jury box in Courtroom 
C at the Criminal Justice Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department went out for Bid #23B-2310 Jury Box 
Construction and obtained quotes for the required fixed seating; and, 

WHEREAS, the Operations and Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the Bid Tab (see Resolution Exhibit A) and Quote Tab 
(see Resolution Exhibit B) for the aforementioned purchase and recommends awarding to:  

SJOSTROM & SONS, INC. 
1129 HARRISON AVENUE 

ROCKFORD, ILLINOIS 61104 
AND 

LAN OFFICE FURNISHINGS 
40 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 102 

BARRINGTON, ILLINOIS 60010 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, to Sjostrom & Sons, Inc., 1129 Harrison, Avenue, 
Rockford, Illinois 61104 and Lan Office Furnishings, 40 East Main Street, Suite 102, Barrington, 
Illinois 60010 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance 
Director, Administrator, Trial Court Administrator, County Board Office and County Auditor.       



 
Respectfully Submitted, 

       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



VENDOR NAME Stenstrom Kee Solutions LLC Ringland-Johnson, Inc.
Scandroli 

Construction Co.
Sjostrom & Sons, 

Inc.
DPI Construction, Inc.

TOTAL PRICE TO 
COMPLETE PROJECT

$34,150 $38,180 $57,575 $48,848 $24,426 $39,900

LEAD DAYS FOR 
PARTS/MATERIALS

60 days 21 days 25 days 5 weeks 3-4 weeks 42 days

NUMBER OF DAYS TO 
COMPLETE WORK

6 days 11-15 days 8 days 2 weeks 5 days 14 days

SCHEDULING NOTICE 
LEAD TIME

30 days 2 weeks 10 days 1 week 6 weeks 14 days

BID OPENING DECEMBER 29, 2023 AT 10:00 AM

BID TAB
23B-2310 JURY BOX CONSTRUCTION

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit A



VENDOR NAME Michalsen Office Furniture, Inc. Lan Office Furnishings Midwest Office Interiors

PRICE FOR 14 FIXED CHAIRS $26,110 $16,887 $18,988

COST OF DELIVERY/SHIPPING $100 $1,196 $1,310

TOTAL COST OF 14 FIXED CHAIRS $26,210 $18,083 $20,298

LEAD TIME 12 weeks 12 weeks 12 weeks

QUOTE TAB
FIXED SEATING FOR 23B-2310 JURY BOX CONSTRUCTION

Purchasing Department | 404 Elm St, Rm 202, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.gov
Phone: (815) 319- 4380 | Email: purchasing@purchasing.wincoil.gov

Resolution Exhibit B



Resolution Executive Summary 
For ARPA or CIP Projects 

Prepared By: Purchasing Department for Sheriff’s Office 
Committee Name: Operations and Administrative Committee 
Committee Date: January 18, 2024 
Board Date:  January 25, 2024     
Resolution Title: Resolution Awarding Purchase of Detective Squad Vehicle for Sheriff’s 

Office Using CIP 24 Funds  

Budget Information 
Budgeted? YES   Amount Budgeted?  $100,000   
If not, originally budgeted, explain the funding source?  
If ARPA or CIP funded, original Board approved amount?   $100,000 
Over or Under approved amount? UNDER   By: $    46,154.47  
Reason for ARPA or CIP increase?  N/A 
If ARPA funded, was it approved by Baker Tilly?  N/A 
ORG/OBJ/Project Codes: 82200-46410-C2405    Descriptor: CIP 24-Automobile 
Budget Impact? $ 53,845.53 

Background Information: The Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office (WCSO) requested the purchase 
of a Detective Squad Vehicle using CIP 24 funds. The Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s 
Office reached out for quotes and availability.  Rock River Ford presented the best offer in the 
amount of $46,694.03, out of three quotes obtained (see Resolution Exhibit A, B and D). This is a 
more cost-effective option for the County. The vehicle is on the lot and available for immediate 
delivery, priced lower ($758) than government pricing. 

Due to prior sourcing struggles, the WCSO is currently waiting for 6 additional vehicles that have 
been on order. The WCSO is approved for two Detective Squad Vehicles, and this vehicle would 
cover one of two purchases. The purchase of this vehicle is for Deputy Chief Kyle Boomer. His 
current vehicle (2022 Ford Explorer) will be transferred to Cole Henert. Cole’s vehicle (2013 Ford 
Taurus 121,130 miles) will go into the spare rotation. This vehicle will be an addition to the 
Sheriff’s fleet.  

Tri-City Emergency Vehicle Services will provide the specialized fabricating of this vehicle in the 
amount of $7,151.50 (See Resolution Exhibit C). 

Recommended By:  Sheriff Gary Caruana and Deputy Chief Kyle Boomer 

Follow-Up Steps:  Purchasing Department will prepare and submit Purchase Orders to Rock 
River Ford in the amount of $46,694.03 and Tri-City Emergency Vehicle Services in the amount 
of $7,151.50. 



    County Board Meeting: January 25, 2024 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
Sponsored by:   Keith McDonald 
Submitted by:  Operations and Administrative Committee 
 

2024 CR 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING PURCHASE OF DETECTIVE SQUAD VEHICLE  
FOR SHERIFF’S OFFICE USING CIP 24 FUNDS 

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 
Section 2-357 (b) (1), Conditions for use. All procurements whose value equals or exceeds the 
competitive bidding threshold of $30,000.00 shall be awarded by competitive sealed bidding in 
accordance with this section except as otherwise provided in 2-357(c) (Request for Proposals), 2-
357(d) (Professional Services), 2-357(e) (Sole-Source), 2-357(f) (Emergency Procurements), 2-357 
(g) (Cooperative Joint Purchasing) or as provided by State statute; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Office requested the purchase of a Detective 
Squad, Ford Explorer, using CIP 24 funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department and the Sheriff’s Office obtained quotes for price 
and delivery, resulting in the lowest price and best lead time from Rock River Ford; and  

 
WHEREAS, Rock River Ford has an equivalent 2023 model on the lot priced lower than 

the government pricing discount; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Operations & Administrative Committee of the County Board for the 

County of Winnebago, Illinois has reviewed the quotes for the Detective Squad Vehicle and 
Vehicle Fabricating, (Resolution Exhibit A, B, C and D) and recommends awarding the 
purchases to Rock River Ford and Tri-City Emergency Vehicle Services, respectively. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, that the Director of Purchasing is authorized to issue Purchase Orders, 
on behalf of the County of Winnebago, Illinois to Anderson Dealerships, Inc., DBA Rock River 
Ford, 224 North Alpine Road, Rockford, Illinois in the amount of $46,694.03 and Tri-City 
Emergency Vehicle Services, 9934 North Alpine Road Suite 105, Machesney Park, Illinois in the 
amount of $7,151.50.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately 
upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
County Administrator, County Sheriff, County Board Office and County Auditor.    

Respectfully Submitted, 



       OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD, CHAIR 
 
 

VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 
 

                            VALERIE HANSERD, VICE CHAIR 
 

PAUL ARENA 
 
 

                                                                             PAUL ARENA 
 
 

JOHN BUTITTA 
 

                                                                         JOHN BUTITTA 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 

                                                                          JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO       JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

MICHAEL THOMPSON  MICHAEL THOMPSON 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2024. 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

JOSEPH CHIARELLI 
CHAIR OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
LORI GUMMOW 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Resolution Exhibit A





Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4 Door 4x4 XLT 

Pricing Summary - Single Vehicle

Vehicle Pricing

Total Delivered Illinois Government Price Including All Items Listed In This Document $49,970.00

Customer Signature Acceptance Date

1

Please submit this page along with your purchase order and a copy of your Illinois Tax Exempt Letter.

This vehicle is available for immediate delivery. Stock vehicles are available, first come first serve and subject 
to sale at any time. Let me know if you have any questions and how you would like to proceed.

Resolution Exhibit B



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

As Configured Vehicle
Code Description

Base Vehicle

K8D Base Vehicle Price (K8D)

Packages

202A Equipment Group 202A
Includes:
- Engine: 2.3L EcoBoost I-4
Includes auto start-stop technology.

- Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic
- 3.58 Non-Limited-Slip Rear Axle Ratio
- GVWR: 6,160 lbs
- Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs
Includes 10-way power driver (power function for tilt, lumbar and recline),

8-way power passenger (power function for lumbar and recline) and 2-
way manually adjustable driver and front passenger head restraints.
- Radio: AM/FM Stereo
Includes MP3 capability, 6 speakers, speed-compensated volume and

SiriusXM includes a 3 month prepaid subscription. Service is not available
in Alaska and Hawaii. SiriusXM audio and data services each require a
subscription sold separately, or as a package, by Sirius XM radio inc. If
you decide to continue service after your trial, the subscription plan you
choose will automatically renew thereafter and you will be charged
according to your chosen payment method at then-current rates. Fees
and taxes apply. To cancel you must call SiriusXM at 1-866-635-2349.
See SiriusXM customer agreement for complete terms at
www.siriusxm.com. All fees and programming subject to change. Trial
subscriptions not available in Alaska and Hawaii.
- FordPass Connect

  Includes 4G LTE Wi-Fi hotspot connects up to 10 devices with wireless
data trial that begins upon AT&T activation and expires at the end of 3
months or when 3GB of data is used, whichever comes first, but cannot
extend beyond the trial subscription period for remote features. To
activate, go to www.att.com/ford, remotely start, lock and unlock vehicle,
schedule specific times to remotely start vehicle, locate parked vehicle
and check vehicle status (FordPass Connect, the Ford Pass App., and
Complimentary Connected Services are required for remote features (see
FordPass terms for details). Connected Service and features depend on
compatible AT&T network availability. Evolving technology/cellular
networks/vehicle capability may limit functionality and prevent operation of
connected features. Connected services excludes Wi-Fi hotspot.). Note:
Ford Telematics and data services prep included for fleet only: FordPass
Connect 4G Wi-Fi modem provides data to support telematics and data
services including but not limited to vehicle location, speed, idle time, fuel,
vehicle diagnostics and maintenance alerts. Device enables telematics
services through Ford or authorized providers. Activate at
www.fleet.ford.com or call 833-FCS-Ford. (833-327-3673).
- SYNC 3 Communications & Entertainment System

  Includes enhanced voice recognition, 8" LCD capacitive touchscreen in
center stack with swipe capability, AppLink, 911 Assist, Apple Car Play
and Android Auto compatibility and 1 "A" and 1 "C" USB ports in the
media hub.
- Acoustic-Laminated Front Side Windows
- Heated Steering Wheel
- LED Fog Lamps
Includes silver-painted front skid plate elements.

- Remote Start System
- SecuriCode Keyless Entry Keypad

Powertrain

2



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

99H Engine: 2.3L EcoBoost I-4
Includes auto start-stop technology.

44T Transmission: 10-Speed Automatic

STDAX 3.58 Non-Limited-Slip Rear Axle Ratio

STDGV GVWR: 6,160 lbs

Wheels & Tires

NONTR Tires: P255/55R20 AS BSW

649 Wheels: 20" Premium Painted Aluminum
Includes:
- Tires: P255/55R20 AS BSW

Seats & Seat Trim

S Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs
Includes 10-way power driver (power function for tilt, lumbar and recline),
8-way power passenger (power function for lumbar and recline) and 2-
way manually adjustable driver and front passenger head restraints.

Other Options

PAINT Monotone Paint Application

119WB 119.1" Wheelbase

STDRD Radio: AM/FM Stereo
Includes MP3 capability, 6 speakers, speed-compensated volume and
SiriusXM includes a 3 month prepaid subscription. Service is not available
in Alaska and Hawaii. SiriusXM audio and data services each require a
subscription sold separately, or as a package, by Sirius XM radio inc. If
you decide to continue service after your trial, the subscription plan you
choose will automatically renew thereafter and you will be charged
according to your chosen payment method at then-current rates. Fees
and taxes apply. To cancel you must call SiriusXM at 1-866-635-2349.
See SiriusXM customer agreement for complete terms at
www.siriusxm.com. All fees and programming subject to change. Trial
subscriptions not available in Alaska and Hawaii.

Includes:
- FordPass Connect

3



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

  Includes 4G LTE Wi-Fi hotspot connects up to 10 devices with wireless
data trial that begins upon AT&T activation and expires at the end of 3
months or when 3GB of data is used, whichever comes first, but cannot
extend beyond the trial subscription period for remote features. To
activate, go to www.att.com/ford, remotely start, lock and unlock vehicle,
schedule specific times to remotely start vehicle, locate parked vehicle
and check vehicle status (FordPass Connect, the Ford Pass App., and
Complimentary Connected Services are required for remote features (see
FordPass terms for details). Connected Service and features depend on
compatible AT&T network availability. Evolving technology/cellular
networks/vehicle capability may limit functionality and prevent operation of
connected features. Connected services excludes Wi-Fi hotspot.). Note:
Ford Telematics and data services prep included for fleet only: FordPass
Connect 4G Wi-Fi modem provides data to support telematics and data
services including but not limited to vehicle location, speed, idle time, fuel,
vehicle diagnostics and maintenance alerts. Device enables telematics
services through Ford or authorized providers. Activate at
www.fleet.ford.com or call 833-FCS-Ford. (833-327-3673).
- SYNC 3 Communications & Entertainment System
Includes enhanced voice recognition, 8" LCD capacitive touchscreen in

center stack with swipe capability, AppLink, 911 Assist, Apple Car Play
and Android Auto compatibility and 1 "A" and 1 "C" USB ports in the
media hub.

65S Ford Co-Pilot360 Assist+

SiriusXM Traffic and Travel Link not available when (58R)
and (58V) are ordered.

Includes:
- Intelligent Adaptive Cruise Control
Includes stop-and-go and lane centering.

- Evasive Steering Assist
- Voice-Activated Touchscreen Navigation System
Includes pinch-to-zoom capability, SiriusXM Traffic and Travel Link.

Note: SiriusXM Traffic and Travel Link includes a 5-year prepaid
subscription. SiriusXM Traffic and Travel Link service is not available in
Alaska or Hawaii. After your trial period ends, Sirius XM audio and data
services each require a subscription sold separately, or as a package, by
SiriusXM Radio Inc. See SiriusXM customer agreement for complete
terms at www.siriusxm.com. All fees and programming subject to change.
Trial subscriptions not available in Alaska and Hawaii.
- Speed Sign Recognition

59W 4G LTE Wi-Fi Hotspot Credit

91X

Required option when feature is not available.

Rear Auxiliary Controls Credit

Required option when feature is not available.

52T Class IV Trailer Tow Package

Emissions

425 50 State Emissions System

Exterior Color

4



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

As Configured Vehicle (cont'd)
Code Description

UM_03 Agate Black Metallic

Interior Color

S6_02 Ebony w/Heated ActiveX Captain's Chairs

Upfit Options

MLT New M License/Title

WTX WeatherTech Floor Liners

DEL Delivery to Winnebago County

MKT Market Adjustment, Stock Unit

5



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs
Dimensions

• Conventional Capacity: 5,300 lbs. • Vehicle body length: 198.8" • Vehicle body width: 78.9" • Vehicle body height: 70.2" •
Wheelbase: 119.1" • Front track: 66.9" • Rear track: 66.9" • Turning radius (to curb): 19.4' • Front brake diameter: 13.6" •
Rear brake diameter: 12.6" • Interior rear cargo volume: 18.2 cu.ft. • Interior rear cargo volume with seats folded: 47.9
cu.ft. • Max interior rear cargo volume: 87.8 cu.ft. • Total passenger volume: 152.7 cu.ft. • Headroom first-row: 40.7" •
Headroom second-row: 40.5" • Headroom third-row: 38.9" • Leg room first-row: 43.0" • Leg room second-row: 39.0" • Leg
room third-row: 32.2" • Shoulder room first-row: 61.8" • Shoulder room second-row: 61.9" • Shoulder room third-row: 54.6"
• Hip room first-row: 59.2" • Hip room second-row: 59.1" • Hip room third-row: 40.9"

Powertrain

• EcoBoost 2.3L I-4 gasoline direct injection, DOHC, variable valve control, intercooled turbo, engine with 300HP • Engine
cylinders: I-4 • Spark ignition system • Horsepower: 300 HP@5500  RPM • Torque: 310 lb.-ft.@3500 RPM • Radiator •
Auto stop-start engine • Driver selectable drivetrain mode • 10-speed automatic • Intelligent 4WD automatic full-time 4WD
• Four-wheel drive • Recommended fuel: premium unleaded • Easy Fuel capless fuel filler • Terrain Management System
all-speed ABS and driveline traction control • Auto locking hub control

Fuel Economy and Emissions

• Fuel economy (city/highway/combined): 20 mpg/27 mpg/23 mpg • Fuel economy city: 20 mpg • Fuel economy highway:
27 mpg • Gasoline secondary fuel type • Fuel economy combined: 23 mpg • LEV3-ULEV50 emissions

Suspension and Handling

• Standard ride suspension • Gas-pressurized front shock absorbers • Gas-pressurized rear shock absorbers

Driveability

• 4-wheel disc brakes • Front and rear ventilated disc brakes • 4-wheel antilock (ABS) brakes • Four channel ABS brakes •
Electronic parking brake • Ford Co-Pilot360 - Post Collision Braking automatic post-collision braking system • Automatic
brake hold • Brake assist system • Hill Descent Control • Hill Start Assist • Independent front suspension • Strut front
suspension • Front anti-roll bar • Front coil springs • Independent rear suspension • Multi-link rear suspension • Rear anti-
roll bar • Speed sensitive power steering • Electric power-assist steering system • Rack-pinion steering • Driver selectable
steering effort • 2-wheel steering system

Body Exterior

* Trailer wiring harness • 4 doors • Roof rails • Clearcoat paint • Monotone paint • Chrome bodyside insert • Black
bodyside cladding • Black wheel well trim • Black side window trim • Black windshield trim • Black rear window trim • Body-
coloured door handles • Body-coloured front bumper * Metal-look front bumper insert • Body-coloured rear bumper •
Black rear bumper rub strip • Grille with chrome bar • Black door mirrors • Standard style side mirrors • Conventional left
rear passenger door • Conventional right rear passenger door • Power liftgate rear cargo door • Active grille shutters *
P255/55RV20 AS BSW front and rear tires * 20 x 8-inch front and rear silver aluminum wheels

Convenience

6



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
• Power door locks with 2 stage unlocking • Keyfob activated door locks * SecuriCode external keypad door lock
control • All-in-one remote fob and ignition key • Auto-locking doors • Intelligent Access smart key with hands-free access
and push button start • Power tailgate/rear door lock • Cruise control with steering wheel mounted controls * Adaptive
Cruise Control with Stop-and-Go • Keyfob trunk control * Smart device and keyfob vehicle start control • Day/Night
rearview mirror • Power first-row windows • Full floor console • Driver foot rest • Power cargo area access release • Fixed
interval rear windshield wipers • Heated rear wiper park • Rear window defroster • Fixed rear windshield • Locking glove
box • Front beverage holders • Rear beverage holders • 10 beverage holders • 2 seatback storage pockets • Driver and
passenger door bins • Rear door bins • Retained accessory power • PRND in IP • Trip computer • Over the air updates

Comfort

• Automatic climate control • Dual-zone front climate control • Cabin air filter • Rear under seat climate control ducts •
Voice-activated climate control • Rear headliner/pillar climate control ducts • Cloth headliner material • Full headliner
coverage * Leatherette door trim insert • Full carpet floor covering • Full floor coverage • Carpet front and rear floor mats
* ActiveX leatherette rear seat upholstery • Carpet rear seatback upholstery * ActiveX leatherette rear seat
upholstery • Carpet third-row seatback upholstery • Manual tilting steering wheel • Manual telescopic steering wheel *
Heated steering wheel • Leather steering wheel

Seats and Trim

• Seating capacity: 6 • Bucket front seats • Driver seat with 8-way directional controls • Front passenger seat with 4-way
directional controls • Height adjustable front seat head restraints • Manual front seat head restraint control • Front seat
center armrest • Power reclining driver seat • Power height adjustable driver seat • Power driver seat fore/aft control •
Power driver seat cushion tilt • Power reclining passenger seat * Power height adjustable control passenger seat •
Power passenger seat fore/aft control • Fixed second-row seats • Second-row captains' chairs • Second-row seats with
manual fore and aft  • Height adjustable rear seat head restraints • Driver seat with 2-way power lumbar * Front
passenger seat with 2-way power lumbar * ActiveX leatherette front seat upholstery • Heated driver and front
passenger seats • Fixed third-row seats • 50-50 folding third-row passenger seat • Third-row bench seat • Front facing
third-row seat • Manual fold into floor third-row seat • Height adjustable third-row head restraints • Manual third-row head
restraint control • 2 third-row head restraints • Piano black console insert

Entertainment Features

• 2 total number of 1st row displays • 8 inch primary LCD display • Primary touchscreen display • SiriusXM AM/FM/Satellite
radio • In-vehicle audio • AM radio • FM radio • SiriusXM satellite radio • Seek scan • SYNC 3 external memory control •
Internal storage capability • Internet radio capability • 3 month satellite trial subscription • Speakers number: 6  • Standard
grade speakers • Steering wheel mounted audio controls • SYNC 3 voice activated audio controls • Speed sensitive
volume • Bluetooth wireless audio streaming • Integrated roof audio antenna

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation

7



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
• Piano black and metal-look instrument panel insert • Analog instrumentation display • Trip odometer • In-radio display
clock • Compass • Exterior temperature display • Driver information center • Redundant digital speedometer • ECO
feedback display gauge • Gauge cluster display size (inches): 6.50 • Tachometer • Engine/electric motor temperature
gauge • Oil level gauge * Laminated side window glass • Deep tinted windows • Aero-composite headlights • LED low
and high beam headlights • Autolamp auto on/off headlight control • Multiple enclosed headlights • Delay-off headlights •
Ford Co-Pilot360 - Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights • DRL preference setting • Variable intermittent front
windshield wipers • Speed sensitive wipers • Front reading lights • Illuminated entry • Rear reading lights • Illuminated
ignition switch • Variable instrument panel light • LED daytime running lights * Front LED fog lights • High mounted
center stop light • Remote activated perimeter approach lighting • LED brake lights • Fade interior courtesy lights

Technology and Telematics

* Integrated navigation system with voice activation * SiriusXM Traffic real-time traffic * Travel Link real-time
weather • SYNC 3 911 Assist emergency SOS system via mobile device • Bluetooth handsfree wireless device
connectivity • SYNC 3/Apple CarPlay/Android Auto smart device mirroring • 4 USB ports

Safety and Security

• Driver front impact airbag • Seat mounted side impact driver airbag • Safety Canopy System curtain first, second and
third-row overhead airbags • Passenger front impact airbag • Seat mounted side impact front passenger airbag • Airbag
occupancy sensor • Driver and passenger side knee airbag • 8 airbags • Front height adjustable seatbelts • Front seatbelt
pretensioners • 2  seatbelt pre-tensioners • SecuriLock immobilizer • Remote panic alarm • Security system * Hands-on
cruise control * Level 2 - partial automation SAE Autonomy • Lane Keeping Alert • BLIS (Blind Spot Information
System) • Pre-Collision Assist with Pedestrian Detection • Cross-Traffic Alert collision warning • Pre-Collision Assist with
Pedestrian Detection • Driver Alert * Speed Sign Recognition • Following distance alert * Evasive Steering Assist
evasion assist system • MyKey restricted driving mode • Rear camera with washer • AdvanceTrac w/Roll Stability
Control electronic stability control system with anti-roll • Reverse Sensing System rear parking sensors • Manual rear child
safety door locks

Dimensions

General Weights
Curb weight 4,437 lbs. GVWR 6,160 lbs.

Trailering Weights
Conventional capacity 5,300 lbs.

Off Road
Min ground clearance 8.2" Loading floor height 32.8 "
Approach angle 20.1 Departure angle 22.0

Exterior Measurements
Vehicle body length 198.8" Vehicle body width 78.9"
Vehicle body height 70.2" Wheelbase 119.1"
Front brake diameter 13.6" Rear brake diameter 12.6"
Front track 66.9" Rear track 66.9"
Turning radius (to curb) 19.4'

8



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Interior Measurements

Interior rear cargo volume 18.2 cu.ft. Max interior rear cargo volume 87.8 cu.ft.
Interior cargo area height 32.8 " Interior cargo length 83.9 "
Interior cargo area min width 48.1 " Interior cargo area max width 59.0 "
Interior rear cargo volume with seats folded 47.9
cu.ft.

Length to rear seat 49.8 "

Length to 3rd row seat 20.8 "

Interior Volume
Total passenger volume 152.7 cu.ft.

Headroom
Headroom first-row 40.7" Headroom second-row 40.5"
Headroom third-row 38.9"

Legroom
Leg room first-row 43.0" Leg room second-row 39.0"
Leg room third-row 32.2"

Shoulder Room
Shoulder room first-row 61.8" Shoulder room second-row 61.9"
Shoulder room third-row 54.6"

Hip Room
Hip room first-row 59.2" Hip room second-row 59.1"
Hip room third-row 40.9"

Powertrain

Engine
Engine EcoBoost 2.3L I-4 gasoline direct
injection, DOHC, variable valve control,
intercooled turbo, engine with 300HP

Valves per cylinder 4

Engine cylinders I-4 Engine location Front mounted engine
Ignition Spark ignition system Engine mounting direction Longitudinal mounted

engine
Engine block material Aluminum engine block Cylinder head material Aluminum cylinder head

Engine Specs
Displacement 2.3L cc 140 cu.in.
Bore 3.44" Stroke 3.7"
Compression ratio 10.0 SAEJ1349 AUG2004 compliant

Engine Power
Horsepower 300 HP@5500  RPM Torque 310 lb.-ft.@3500 RPM

9



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Alternator

Alternator type Regenerative alternator

Battery
Battery type Lead acid battery Battery run down protection Battery run down

protection

Engine Extras
Radiator Radiator Start-stop engine Auto stop-start engine
Drivetrain selectable Driver selectable drivetrain
mode

Transmission
Transmission 10-speed automatic Transmission electronic control Transmission

electronic control
Overdrive transmission Overdrive transmission Lock-up transmission Lock-up transmission
First gear ratio 4.714 Second gear ratio 2.997
Third gear ratio 2.149 Fourth gear ratio 1.769
Fifth gear ratio 1.521 Sixth gear ratio 1.275
Reverse gear ratio 4.885 Seventh gear ratio 1
Eighth gear ratio 0.853 Ninth gear ratio 0.689
Tenth gear ratio 0.636 Selectable mode transmission Selectable mode

transmission

Drive Type
4WD type Intelligent 4WD automatic full-time
4WD

Drive type Four-wheel drive

Drivetrain
Axle ratio 3.58

Exhaust
Tailpipe Stainless steel quasi-dual exhaust

Fuel
Fuel type premium unleaded

Fuel Tank
Capless fuel filler Easy Fuel capless fuel filler Fuel tank capacity 17.91 gal.

Drive Feature
Traction control Terrain Management System
all-speed ABS and driveline traction control

Locking hub control Auto locking hub control

Fuel Economy and Emissions

Fuel Economy

10



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Secondary fuel type Gasoline secondary fuel
type

Fuel economy combined 23 mpg

Fuel economy city 20 mpg Fuel economy highway 27 mpg
Fuel economy (city/highway/combined) 20 mpg/27
mpg/23 mpg

Fuel economy status Current fuel economy
status

Emissions
Emissions LEV3-ULEV50 emissions Emissions tiers Tier 3 Bin 50 emissions

Green Values
Energy Impact Score (Barrels per year) 12.9 Carbon FP / Tailpipe and upstream total GHG (CO2,

tons per year) 7.7

Suspension and Handling

Suspension
Suspension Standard ride suspension Front shock absorbers Gas-pressurized front

shock absorbers
Rear shock absorbers Gas-pressurized rear
shock absorbers

Driveability

Brakes
Brake type 4-wheel disc brakes Ventilated brakes Front and rear ventilated disc

brakes
ABS brakes Four channel ABS brakes Electronic parking brakeElectronic parking brake
ABS brakes 4-wheel antilock (ABS) brakes Post collision braking system Ford Co-Pilot360 -

Post Collision Braking automatic post-
collision braking system

Brake Assistance
Hill start assist Hill Start Assist Hill control Hill Descent Control
Brake assist system Brake assist system

Front Suspension
Anti-roll bar front Front anti-roll bar Suspension ride type front Independent front

suspension
Suspension type front Strut front suspension

Front Spring
Regular front springs Regular front springs Springs front Front coil springs

Rear Spring
Springs rear Rear coil springs Rear springs Regular grade rear springs

Rear Suspension

11



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Anti-roll bar rear Rear anti-roll bar Suspension type rear Multi-link rear suspension
Suspension ride type rear Independent rear
suspension

Steering
Steering Electric power-assist steering system Steering type Rack-pinion steering
Speed sensitive steering Speed sensitive power
steering

Driver selectable steering effort Driver selectable
steering effort

Steering type number of wheels 2-wheel steering
system

Exterior

Front Wheels

* Front wheels diameter 20" * Front wheels width 8"

Rear Wheels

* Rear wheels diameter 20" * Rear wheels width 8"

Front And Rear Wheels
Appearance silver Material aluminum

Front Tires

* Aspect 55 * Diameter 20"

Sidewalls BSW * Speed V

Tread AS Type P
Width 255mm

Rear Tires

* Aspect 55 * Diameter 20"

Sidewalls BSW * Speed V

Tread AS Type P
Width 255mm

Body Exterior

Trailering

* Towing capability Trailer towing capability * Towing class Class IV tow rating

* Towing hitch Trailer hitch * Towing wiring harness Trailer wiring harness

Towing trailer sway Trailer sway control Trailer light malfunction warning Trailer light
malfunction warning

Exterior Features
Number of doors 4 doors

12



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Body

Body panels Galvanized steel and aluminum
body panels with side impact beams

Spare Tire
Spare tire Compact spare tire with steel wheel Spare tire locationSpare tire mounted under the

cargo floor

Aerodynamics
Spoiler Rear lip spoiler

Convenience

Door Locks
Door locks Power door locks with 2 stage
unlocking

Fob engine controlsIntelligent Access smart key
with hands-free access and push button
start

Keyfob door locks Keyfob activated door locks * External door locks SecuriCode external
keypad door lock control

All-in-one keyAll-in-one remote fob and ignition
key

Auto door locks Auto-locking doors

Tailgate control Power tailgate/rear door lock

Cruise Control
Cruise control Cruise control with steering
wheel mounted controls

* Adaptive cruise control Adaptive Cruise
Control with Stop-and-Go

Key Fob Controls
Keyfob cargo controls Keyfob trunk control * Fob remote vehicle controls Smart device and

keyfob vehicle start control

Rear View Mirror
Day/Night rearview mirror Day/Night rearview
mirror

Exterior Mirrors
Door mirrors Power door mirrors Folding door mirrors Manual folding door mirrors
Heated door mirrors Heated driver and
passenger side door mirrors

Front Side Windows
First-row windows Power first-row windows

Floor Console
Floor console Full floor console Floor console storage Covered floor console

storage

13



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Overhead Console

Overhead console Mini overhead console Overhead console storage Overhead console
storage

Driver Visor
Visor driver mirror Driver visor mirror Visor illuminated driver mirror Illuminated driver

visor mirror
Visor driver expandable coverage Driver visor with
expandable coverage

Passenger Visor
Visor passenger mirror Passenger visor mirror Visor illuminated passenger mirror Illuminated

passenger visor mirror
Visor passenger expandable coverage Passenger
visor with expandable coverage

Power Outlets
12V power outlets 4 12V power outlets

Cargo Features
Trunk hatch Trunk/hatch auto-latching Cargo tie downs Cargo area tie downs
Cargo light Cargo area light Concealed cargo storage Cargo area concealed

storage

Cargo Trim
Cargo floor type Carpet cargo area floor Trunk lid trim Plastic trunk lid trim

Pedals
Driver foot rest Driver foot rest

Remote Releases
Cargo access Power cargo area access
release

Rear Windshield
Rear window defroster Rear window defroster Rear windshield Fixed rear windshield
Rear windshield wipers Fixed interval rear
windshield wipers

Heated wiper area Heated rear wiper park

Storage
Door bins front Driver and passenger door bins Door bins rear Rear door bins
Number of beverage holders10 beverage holders Beverage holders Front beverage holders
Beverage holders rear Rear beverage holders Glove box Locking glove box
Seatback storage pockets 2 seatback storage
pockets

Windows Feature

14



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
One-touch up window Driver and passenger
one-touch up windows

One-touch down window Driver and passenger
one-touch down windows

Windows Rear Side
Second-row windows Power second-row
windows

Third-row windows Fixed third-row windows

Miscellaneous
Trip computer Trip computer PRND in IP PRND in IP
Accessory power Retained accessory power Over the air updates Over the air updates

Comfort

Climate Control
Climate control Automatic climate control Rear headliner/pillar ducts Rear headliner/pillar

climate control ducts
Dual-zone front climate control Dual-zone front
climate control

Cabin air filter Cabin air filter

Voice activated climate control Voice-activated
climate control

Rear under seat ducts Rear under seat climate
control ducts

Headliner
Headliner material Cloth headliner material Headliner coverage Full headliner coverage

Door Trim

* Door trim insert Leatherette door trim insert Door panel insert Piano black and metal-look
door panel insert

Floor Trim
Floor covering Full carpet floor covering Floor coverage Full floor coverage
Floor mats Carpet front and rear floor mats

Second-Row Seat Trim

* Rear seat upholstery ActiveX leatherette rear
seat upholstery

Rear seatback upholstery Carpet rear seatback
upholstery

Third-Row Seat Trim

* Third-row seat upholstery ActiveX leatherette
rear seat upholstery

Third-row seatback upholstery Carpet third-row
seatback upholstery

Steering Wheel
Steering wheel telescopic Manual telescopic
steering wheel

Steering wheel material Leather steering wheel

Steering wheel tilt Manual tilting steering wheel * Heated steering wheel Heated steering wheel

Seats and Trim

15



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Seat Capacity

Seating capacity 6

Front Seats
Driver seat direction Driver seat with 8-way
directional controls

Height adjustable driver seat Power height
adjustable driver seat

Driver seat fore/aft control Power driver seat
fore/aft control

Driver seat cushion tiltPower driver seat cushion
tilt

Passenger seat direction Front passenger seat
with 4-way directional controls

Split front seats Bucket front seats

Reclining passenger seat Power reclining
passenger seat

* Height adjustable passenger seat Power height
adjustable control passenger seat

Passenger seat fore/aft control Power passenger
seat fore/aft control

Front head restraints Height adjustable front
seat head restraints

Front head restraint control Manual front seat
head restraint control

Armrests front center Front seat center armrest

Reclining driver seat Power reclining driver seat

Rear Seats
Second-row seats Second-row captains' chairs Rear seats fixed or removable Fixed second-row

seats
Reclining second-row rear seats Manual reclining
second-row seats

Rear seat direction Front facing rear seat

Rear seat folding position Fold forward second-
row seatback

Fore and aft seat Second-row seats with
manual fore and aft

Rear head restraints Height adjustable rear seat
head restraints

Rear head restraint control Manual rear seat
head restraint control

Number of rear head restraints 2 rear seat head
restraints

Armrests rear mounted Second-row outboard-
only mounted armrests

Lumbar Seats
Driver lumbar Driver seat with 2-way power
lumbar

* Front passenger lumbar Front passenger seat
with 2-way power lumbar

Front Seat Trim

* Front seat upholstery ActiveX leatherette
front seat upholstery

* Front seatback upholstery Leatherette front
seatback upholstery

Heated Front Seats
Heated front seats Heated driver and front
passenger seats

Third-Row Seats
Bench seats Third-row bench seat Third-row seat fixed or removable Fixed third-row

seats

16



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Third-row seats folding 50-50 folding third-row
passenger seat

Third-row head restraint control Manual third-row
head restraint control

Third-row seat facing Front facing third-row seat Third-row fold into floor seats Manual fold into
floor third-row seat

Third-row head restraints Height adjustable third-
row head restraints

Third-row head restraint number 2 third-row head
restraints

Interior Accents
Interior accents Chrome and metal-look interior
accents

Console Trim
Console insert material Piano black console
insert

Entertainment Features

LCD Displays
Primary touchscreen display Primary touchscreen
display

Number of first-row LCD displays2 total number of
1st row displays

LCD primary display size 8 inch primary LCD
display

Radio Features
Internal storage Internal storage capability External memory SYNC 3 external memory

control
Seek scan Seek scan Internet radio capability Internet radio capability

Speakers
Speakers Standard grade speakers Speakers number 6

Audio Features
Steering mounted audio control Steering wheel
mounted audio controls

Speed sensitive volume Speed sensitive volume

Voice activated audio SYNC 3 voice activated
audio controls

Wireless streaming Bluetooth wireless audio
streaming

Lighting, Visibility and Instrumentation

Instrument Panel Trim
Panel insert Piano black and metal-look
instrument panel insert

Instrumentation
Trip odometer Trip odometer Instrumentation display Analog instrumentation

display

17



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Instrumentation Displays

Speedometer Redundant digital speedometer Temperature display Exterior temperature
display

Driver information center Driver information
center

Clock In-radio display clock

Compass Compass Eco feedback ECO feedback display gauge

Instrumentation Gauges
Tachometer Tachometer Oil level gauge Oil level gauge
Engine/electric motor temperature
gauge Engine/electric motor temperature
gauge

Gauge cluster display size (inches) 6.50

Instrumentation Warnings
Engine temperature warning Engine temperature
warning

Oil pressure warning Oil pressure warning

Low fuel warning Low fuel warning Low washer fluid warning Low washer fluid
warning

Low brake fluid warning Low brake fluid warning Battery charge warning Battery charge warning
Headlights on reminder Headlights on reminder Key in vehicle warning Key in vehicle warning
Bulb warning Bulb failure warning Door ajar warning Door ajar warning
Trunk warning Rear cargo ajar warning Service interval warning Intelligent Oil-Life

Monitor service interval indicator
Low tire pressure warning Tire specific low air
pressure warning

Transmission fluid temperature
warning Transmission fluid temp warning

Glass

* Laminated window Laminated side window
glass

Tinted windows Deep tinted windows

Headlights
Headlights LED low and high beam headlights Headlight type Aero-composite headlights
Auto headlights Autolamp auto on/off headlight
control

Multiple headlights Multiple enclosed headlights

Delay off headlights Delay-off headlights Auto high-beam headlights Ford Co-Pilot360 -
Auto High Beam auto high-beam headlights

DRL preference setting DRL preference setting

Front Windshield
Wipers Variable intermittent front windshield
wipers

Speed sensitive wipers Speed sensitive wipers

Interior Lighting
Illuminated entry Illuminated entry Illuminated ignition switch Illuminated ignition

switch

18



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Variable panel light Variable instrument panel
light

Front reading lights Front reading lights

Rear reading lights Rear reading lights

Lights
Running lights LED daytime running lights Interior courtesy lights Fade interior courtesy

lights
* Fog lights Front LED fog lights LED brake lights LED brake lights

High mount stop light High mounted center stop
light

Perimeter approach lighting Remote activated
perimeter approach lighting

Technology and Telematics

Navigation

* Integrated navigation Integrated navigation
system with voice activation

Connectivity
Handsfree Bluetooth handsfree wireless
device connectivity

Smart device integration SYNC 3/Apple
CarPlay/Android Auto smart device mirroring

* Real time traffic SiriusXM Traffic real-time
traffic

* Real time weather Travel Link real-time
weather

Emergency SOS SYNC 3 911 Assist
emergency SOS system via mobile device

USB Ports
USB ports 4 USB ports

Safety and Security

Airbags
Front impact airbag driver Driver front impact
airbag

Number of airbags 8 airbags

Front impact airbag passenger Passenger front
impact airbag

Knee airbag Driver and passenger side knee
airbag

Front side impact airbag driver Seat mounted side
impact driver airbag

Front side impact airbag passenger Seat mounted
side impact front passenger airbag

Occupancy sensor Airbag occupancy sensor Overhead airbags Safety Canopy System
curtain first, second and third-row overhead
airbags

Seatbelts
Height adjustable seatbelts Front height
adjustable seatbelts

Seatbelt pretensioners Front seatbelt
pretensioners

Seatbelt pretensioners number 2  seatbelt pre-
tensioners

19



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Selected Equip & Specs (cont'd)
Security System

Immobilizer SecuriLock immobilizer Remote panic alarm Remote panic alarm
Security system Security system

Active Driving Assistance
Lane departure Lane Keeping Alert Blind spot BLIS (Blind Spot Information

System)
Forward collision warning Pre-Collision Assist
with Pedestrian Detection

Rear collision warning Cross-Traffic Alert
collision warning

Pedestrian detection Pre-Collision Assist with
Pedestrian Detection

Driver attention monitor Driver Alert

* Traffic sign information Speed Sign
Recognition

Distance alert Following distance alert

* Evasion assist system Evasive Steering
Assist evasion assist system

Restricted driving mode MyKey restricted driving
mode

* Autonomous cruise control Hands-on cruise
control

* SAE Autonomy Level 2 - partial automation
SAE Autonomy

Cameras
Rear camera Rear camera with washer

Traction Control
Electronic stability control AdvanceTrac w/Roll
Stability Control electronic stability control
system with anti-roll

Parking Sensors
Parking sensors Reverse Sensing System rear
parking sensors

Occupant Safety
Child door locks Manual rear child safety door
locks

20



Prices and content availability as shown are subject to change and should be treated as estimates only. Actual base vehicle, package and option pricing

may vary from this estimate because of special local pricing, availability or pricing adjustments not reflected in the dealer’s computer system. See

salesperson for the most current information.

Prepared for:
Winnebago County Purchasing
Prepared by: Richie Wellenkamp
01/10/2024 Morrow Brothers Ford, Inc. | 1242 Main Street Greenfield Illinois | 62044

2023 Explorer 4dr 4x4 XLT (K8D)
Price Level: 360

Warranty
Standard Warranty

Basic Warranty
Basic warranty 36 months/36,000 miles

Powertrain Warranty
Powertrain warranty 60 months/60,000 miles

Corrosion Perforation
Corrosion perforation warranty 60 months/unlimited

Roadside Assistance Warranty
Roadside warranty 60 months/60,000 miles

Accessories Warranty
Accessories warranty 36 months/36,000 miles

21







Resolution Exhibit D 

 

 



PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 





























































UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 



Appointments 



NEW BUSINESS 



ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

Announcements & Communications 
Date: January 25, 2024 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Lori Gummow 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 

County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 

Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  

1. County Clerk Gummow received from Theresa Grennan, Chief Deputy Winnebago
County Treasurer the following:

a. Collateralization Report – December 31, 2023
b. Investment Report - as of December 31, 2023
c. Winnebago County Treasurer Bank Balances –December, 2023

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

Adjournment 


	Revised Agenda
	Awards, Presentations, Public Hearings & Public Participation
	Debbie Jarvis - Update on Juvenile Detention Center
	Approval of Minutes
	Consent Agenda
	Appointments
	Winnebago County Sheriff's Merit Commission Appointment
	Steve Schwartz
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Finance Committee
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Charter Communications Cable Television Franchise Agreement Amendment
	Ordinance to Abate 2012C State Income Tax Alternate Bond Property Tax Levy for year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate 2016E PSST Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate 2017C Tort Property Tax & Quarter Cent Sales Tax Alternative Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate the tax hereto levied for year 2023 payable 2024 to pay Principal of & Interest on Taxable General Obligation Bonds Series 2018
	Ordinance to Abate 2020A Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate 2020B Alternative Revenue Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2021A Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2021B Bond Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate General Obligation Alternate Refunding Bonds (PSST Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2022 Bonds Property Tax Levy for Year 2023 Payable 2024
	Ordinance to Abate Special Tax Roll for 2023 Levy Year for Properties within Special Service Area for I-39/Baxter Road County Water District Project
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Resolution Awarding Jury Box Construction Using CIP 2023 PSST Funds
	Resolution Awarding Purchase of Detective Squad Vehicle for Sheriff's Office using CIP 24 Funds
	Public Works Committee
	(24-001) Resolution
	(24-002) Ordinance
	(24-003) Resolution
	Unfinished Business
	Appointments
	New Business
	Annoucements & Communications
	Adjournment



